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September 26, 2013 
TO: Pool Handlers on the Northeast Order 

FROM: Erik Rasmussen, Market Administrator, Boston, Massachusetts 

SUBJECT: Shipping Percentage Request for October and November 2013 – Withdrawn 

On September 11, 2013, a request was received on behalf of Elmhurst Dairy, Inc. (Elmhurst), a pool handler operating 
multiple distributing plants and regulated under the provisions of the Northeast Order, to increase the shipping percentage 
specified in Section 1001.7 (c) (2) of the Order to 30 percent for the months of October and November 2013.  The request 
cited an unanticipated, yet significant, drop in farm milk production occurring in early September, with little or no 
additional milk being made available to Elmhurst.  The petitioners requested that an investigation immediately be initiated 
to review the need for an adjustment as requested.   In the two weeks that have passed since the request was received, 
some market conditions have modified and pool handlers operating in the Northeast Order have made supplies of milk 
available to Elmhurst with acknowledgement of continued availability in upcoming months.  As a result, on September 
25, 2013, Elmhurst withdrew their request to increase the percentages for the months of October and November.   

Following is a summary of the investigation conducted by the Market Administrator into this matter that supports the 
decision reached by Elmhurst that an increase in the shipping percentage for October and November 2013 is unnecessary 
and, in fact, could lead to unwarranted market disruption.   The shipping percentages under Section 1001.7 (c) (2) of the 
Order for the months of October and November shall remain at the 15 percent level as announced in a decision issued 
August 5, 2013.  

Investigation 
On September 13, 2013, this office notified pool handlers of the Elmhurst request and invited the submission of 

comments and data regarding the request no later than September 25, 2013.  In the course of the Market Administrator’s 
investigation into market conditions, conversations occurred with pool handlers, and it became apparent that the shortages 
reported by Elmhurst were not as acute across the region or for other handlers operating pool distributing plants.   No 
handler operating pool distributing plants pooled on the Order submitted comments in support of Elmhurst’s request, nor 
were any comments received noting significant production declines and tight milk supply conditions.    

Pool handler and operator of a supply plant, Queensboro Farm Products, Inc. (Queensboro), submitted comments 
opposing the increase while noting that in early September they were called on to help supply a minor Class I milk 
shortage and they did so immediately.  Queensboro stated that the Class I supply will be maintained by the industry, as it 
has in the past, without a mandated increase in the shipping percentage.   

The Greater Northeast Milk Marketing Agency (GNEMMA) submitted comments stating that they did not believe an 
increase in the percentages was necessary while noting that when called to their attention the GNEMMA cooperatives, 
with support from their customers, made milk available to Elmhurst and would continue to assist in making milk available 
to Elmhurst as needed to satisfy Class I demand.  GNEMMA’s member cooperatives are:  Agri-Mark, Inc.; Dairylea 
Cooperative, Inc.; Dairy Farmers of America, Inc.; Land O’Lakes, Inc.; Maryland and Virginia Milk Producers 
Cooperative Association, Inc.; St. Albans Cooperative Creamery, Inc.; Upstate Niagara Cooperative, Inc.; and Dairy 
Marketing Services, LLC.  All of these organizations are cooperative association handlers regulated under the provisions 
of the Order who must comply with the shipping provisions under Section 1001.7 (c) (1) and (2).  



Milk Production  
The August 2013 milk production report, issued by USDA National Agricultural Statistics Service (NASS) on 

September 20, 2013, indicated that milk production in the state of New York was 4.2 percent greater than the volume of 
milk produced in New York in August 2012.  In fact, New York’s August 2013 milk production was the largest volume of 
milk produced in the month of August going back to the Order’s inception in 2000.  The other major northeast dairy states 
of Pennsylvania and Vermont reported year over year production gains of 3.5 percent and 2.8 percent, respectively, all 
greater than the reported average for the top 23 dairy states of 2.7 percent.   While some reduction in milk production 
typically occurs as the fall months progress, due to changing feedstuffs and seasonal production patterns, there is currently 
no evidence of upcoming widespread and significant declines in milk production in New York State or the greater 
Northeast region.   Thus, it appears that the reported milk production tightness experienced by Elmhurst was more of an 
isolated incident for the particular handler in question rather than an issue for all handlers with fluid milk operations 
pooled on the Order. 

Decision 
In light of Elmhurst’s withdrawing their request, industry initiatives to provide adequate supplies of milk to Class I 

customers, and our evaluation of market conditions, an increase in the shipping percentages for October and November 
2013 will not be implemented.  As provided under the terms of the Northeast Order under Section 1001.7(g), the Market 
Administrator may review the need for further adjustment on his own initiative or at the request of interested parties. 

/s/ Erik F. Rasmussen 

Attachments 
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LAW OFFICES OF MARVIN BESHORE
130 State Street, P.O. Box 946 

Harrisburg, PA 17108-0946 

Telephone: (717) 236-0781 
Facsimile:  (717) 236-0791 

Marvin Beshore 
mbeshore@beshorelaw.com 

September 25, 2013 

Via email: erasmussen@fedmilk1.com 
Mr. Erik F. Rasmussen 
Federal Milk Market Administrator 
Northeast Marketing Area 
89 South Street, Suite 301 
Boston, MA 02111-2671 

        Re: Request to increase shipping percentage pursuant to 7 C.F.R. Section 1001.7(c)(2) 

Dear Mr. Rasmussen: 

This letter is submitted on behalf of the Greater Northeast Milk Marketing Agency 
(GNEMMA) in response to your solicitation of comments with respect to a request to increase 
the shipping percentage pursuant to 7 C.F.R. Section 1001.7(c)(2) for the months of October and 
November 2013.  The dairy cooperative members of GNEMMA are: Agrimark, Inc., Dairylea 
Cooperative Inc., Dairy Farmers of America, Inc., Land O=Lakes, Inc., Maryland and Virginia 
Milk Producers Cooperative Association, Inc., St. Albans Cooperative Creamery, Inc., Upstate 
Niagara Cooperative, Inc. and Dairy Marketing Services LLC.  All of these organizations are 
qualified cooperative associations marketing producer milk on Order 1.    

GNEMMA understands that the requestor has withdrawn or will be withdrawing its 
request.  In our view, that action is appropriate and properly reflects that market conditions do  
not warrant an increase of the shipping percentage from 15% to 30% as provided in Section 
1001.7 (c)(2) for the months of October and November 2013.  We would specifically note that 
for August, USDA-NASS reported that milk production both regionally and nationally was quite 
strong.  In the northeast states, production was up 4.2% in New York, 3.5% in Pennsylvania, and 
2.8% in Vermont.   

The request to increase the shipping requirements appears to have reflected the unique  
needs of one plant in early September.  When called to our attention, the GNEMMA 
cooperatives, with support in several instances from customers as well, stepped up and made 
milk available to the plant so that its needs for Class I supplies were filled.  As suppliers to the 
majority of distributing plants on the order, GNEMMA is not aware of other plants with similar 
supply shortfalls. 
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Mr. Erik F. Rasmussen 
September 25, 2013 
Page 2 

While there were some spot declines in milk production in some portions of the milkshed 
in late August and early September which were modestly greater than usual seasonal declines, 
milk production has recovered. 

In summary, GNEMMA is of the view that the northeast marketplace is in balance and 
fully served under the current shipping requirements.  

Thank you for considering our comments. 

Very truly yours, 

Marvin Beshore 

MB:  amb 
cc: (via email only) 

Peter Fredericks (pfredericks@fedmilk1.com) 
 GNEMMA member cooperatives 




